
  

Minutes 

Architectural Review Board  

December 14, 2015 

Council Chambers, City Hall 

Fredericksburg, Virginia 
  

  
 

Members Present   Members Absent   Staff 
Kerri S. Barile, Chair        Erik Nelson 
Jamie Scully, Vice Chair       Phaun Moore 
Susan Pates 
John Van Zandt 
Sabina Weitzman     
John Harris            
Kenneth McFarland 
 
 
Dr. Barile called the Architectural Review Board meeting to order at 7:30 p.m. 
 
OPENING REMARKS 
 
Dr. Barile determined that a quorum was present and asked if public notice requirements had 
been met.   
 
Mr. Nelson responded that the City Attorney had indicated that she thought the information 
provided in the public notice for Items 1, 3 and 4 was not sufficient.  Mr. Nelson commented that 
the City Attorney’s comments were based on notice required for land use and rezoning decisions, 
which are legislative decisions.  The ARB acts in a quasi-judicial capacity and makes design 
decisions, rather than land use decisions; therefore he thought the public notice met the standards 
in the State Code.  Mr. Nelson recommended that the Board hear all of the items and allow for 
public comment since they had been advertised, and then either postpone the cases until January 
to allow them to be re-advertised, or vote to take action.  
 
Dr. Barile suggested that the Board further discuss their options when it was time to hear the 
cases. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Dr. Barile noted that staff had asked to add two items to Other Business: 
3 – Informal review of the proposed work at the Old Walker Grant School, by Moseley      
Architects. 
4 – Update on the parking lot at 1016 Charles Street. 
 
Dr. Barile added two more items to Other Business: 
5 – Discussion about meeting on December 15 with legal representation. 

Page 1 of 5 
 



6 – Brief discussion about election of officers in January.  
 
She also added review of the minutes from the closed session meeting on December 7, which 
Mr. Nelson had emailed to the Board. 
 
Mr. Van Zandt made a motion to accept the agenda as amended.  Mr. Harris seconded.  The 
motion carried unanimously.   
 
REVIEW OF MINUTES 
 
Dr. Barile had corrections for the minutes from November 9, 2015.  She said that Other Business 
item 3 should be “Archaeological” not “Architectural” and the number “100” should be 
corrected to “400.” 
 
There were no changes to the meeting minutes from November 23, 2015 and December 7, 2015. 
Mr. McFarland made a motion to adopt the minutes from November 23 and December 7, 2015 as 
written, and to adopt the minutes from November 9, 2015 as amended.  Mr. Harris seconded.  
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
DISCLOSURE OF EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Dr. Barile asked if any Board member had engaged in ex parte communications on any item 
before the Board.  No one indicated that they had engaged in any ex parte communication. 
 
DISCLOSURE OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 
Dr. Barile asked if any Board member had a conflict of interest for any item before the Board.   
 
Ms. Pates stated she had a conflict of interest for 310 Frederick Street, which was item 2 under 
Other Business. 
 
Mr. Scully stated the owners of 904 Princess Anne Street were represented by others in his 
office, but he did not have any involvement.  He asked if that posed a conflict.  Mr. Nelson said 
that he did not think it was a conflict.  Mr. Scully also pointed out that item 4 on the agenda was 
his project and he would be abstaining from any discussion and voting. 
 
APPLICATIONS – NEW BUSINESS (Public Hearing) 
 
Dr. Barile reminded the Board that City staff had suggested they have the public hearing and 
give those that were in attendance the opportunity to speak. 
 
The Board discussed the situation regarding the public notice.   
 
Dr. Barile said the advice of her attorneys was to not hear the cases.   
 
Mr. Van Zandt stated that they, as a group, had not discussed that issue with the attorneys. 
 
Mr. McFarland expressed concern about ignoring the advice of the City Attorney.   

Page 2 of 5 
 



Mr. Harris noted that the real issue for the City Attorney appeared to be the townhouses 
approved for the 300 block of George Street. 
 
Mr. Van Zandt made a motion to continue with the Public Hearing and vote on all cases.  Mr. 
Harris seconded. Motion carried 4-3, with Dr. Barile, Ms. Pates, and Mr. McFarland opposed. 
 

1. John and Wendy Young – Exterior alterations at 128 Caroline Street. 
 
The applicant, Wendy Young, was present with her architect, Robin Schick.  There was no 
public comment. 
 
Dr. Barile noted that she would be abstaining from the vote. 
 
Ms. Weitzman commented on the placement of a structural member that would support the roof 
overhang on the front elevation and asked about the proposed materials for the windows and 
door.  
 
Ms. Schick said the windows and door would be painted wood and that they were going to 
keep/reuse as much of the current material as possible. 
 
Mr. Van Zandt made a motion to approve the proposed alterations.  Mr. Harris seconded.  Ms. 
Weitzman asked to make a friendly amendment that approval be contingent on the public notice 
being valid.  Mr. Van Zandt said he preferred not to burden the applicant with their legal matter.  
Ms. Weitzman ensured the applicant understood the circumstances.  Ms. Young responded that 
she did.  The motion carried 4-0-3 with Dr. Barile, Ms. Pates, and Mr. McFarland abstaining. 
 

2. Walt Sheffield – Removal of brick wall at 904 Princess Anne Street. 
 

The applicant was present.  There was no public comment. 
 
Mr. Sheffield commented that removing the brick wall from the parking lot would allow better 
use of the lot and make it easier for snow removal. 
 
Ms. Weitzman asked for clarification about which section of the wall would be removed. 
 
The Board discussed the submitted drawings in detail to ensure everyone was clear on the 
proposed work. 
 
Mr. Van Zandt made a motion to approve the removal of the post-1965 section of the brick wall, 
as presented.  Mr. Harris seconded.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 
3. Walt Sheffield – Alterations to garage at 1314 Sophia Street. 

 
The applicant and his contractor, Steve Robinson, were present.  
 
James McGhee, of 600 Carline Street, spoke in favor of the project. 
 
Mr. Sheffield explained the necessity for his proposal. 

Page 3 of 5 
 



Ms. Weitzman asked about the new windows and suggested they not use shutters. 
 
Mr. Sheffield said the windows would be wood with shutters to match what was on the house.  
 
Mr. Scully asked for additional details. 
 
Mr. Robinson said the windows would be solid wood, painted, energy efficient windows with 
double glass. 
 
Mr. Van Zandt made a motion to approve the alterations as proposed.  Mr. Harris seconded.  Ms. 
Weitzman said the shutters were not complimentary and suggested amending the motion to 
approve without the shutters. 
 
Mr. Van Zandt accepted the amended motion to approve the alterations, without shutters.  Mr. 
Harris also accepted the amended motion.  Motion carried 4-0-3 with Dr. Barile, Ms. Pates, and 
Mr. McFarland abstaining. 
 

4. Jamie Scully – Fence at 240 Charles Street. 
 
The applicant was present, but constrained from participating due to a conflict of interest.  There 
was no public comment. 
 
Ms. Weitzman commented that the proposed materials and style of the fence were compatible 
with the property. 
 
Mr. Van Zandt said he was also in favor of the project. 
 
Mr. Harris made a motion to approve the fence as proposed.  Ms. Weitzman seconded.  Motion 
carried 3-0-4 with Dr. Barile, Ms. Pates, Mr. McFarland, and Mr. Scully abstaining.   
 
Dr. Barile clarified that the motion passed because there were no negative votes. 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 

1. Transmittal of Planning Commission agenda. 
 

Mr. Nelson transmitted the Planning Commission agenda from December 9, 2015.  He said that 
the Red Dragon Brewery had strong neighborhood support. 
 
Chuck Johnston, Planning Director, commented from the audience that the Medicorp Properties 
application had been withdrawn from the Planning Commission agenda. 

 
2. Informal review – 310 Frederick Street. 

 
Mr. Ron Downing engaged in an informal discussion to review possibilities for redeveloping the 
property.   
 

Page 4 of 5 
 



Mr. Scully thanked Mr. Downing for his interest in exploring options.  He said he recognized 
that the brick warehouse was not safe, but that it would be important to try to salvage the visible 
walls. 
 
Ms. Weitzman said that in addition to the walls, it would be important to retain the gable roof. 
 
Mr. McFarland said the existing brick walls appear true.  They are not bulging, but it was also 
clear from the building’s condition that there was a race with time. 
 
Mr. Scully said the area was industrial in nature, which any new building or buildings needed to 
reflect. 
 
Mr. Van Zandt said they were faced with demolition by neglect so he was excited about a 
potential project that would preserve at least a portion of the building. 
 
Dr. Barile said she recognized the building’s condition was poor.  She added that it was a simple 
neighborhood and a simple design was better for any new buildings. 
 

3. Informal review – Old Walker Grant School. 
 
Doug Westmoreland, of Moseley Architects, discussed the proposed renovation project.  He 
reviewed installation of mechanical units, window replacement, and new entryways.  The Board 
thanked him and said they looked forward to seeing him at the January 2016 meeting.   
 

4. Update on 1016 Charles Street. 
 
Mr. Nelson said the City was going to move forward with the partial demolition of the drive-
thru.   
 

5. Brief discussion – ARB election of officers. 
 
Dr. Barile reminded the Board that it was her last meeting as chair person and that they would 
need to elect a new chair person at the January meeting.  
 

6. Brief discussion – closed meeting on December 15, 2015. 
 

Dr. Barile stated that they would hold a closed meeting with the attorneys representing the ARB 
on Tuesday, December 14, 2015 at 6:00 p.m. in the conference room upstairs at City Hall.  
 
ADJOURN 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:19 p.m. 
 
 
      _______________________________________ 
      Kerri S. Barile, ARB Chair  

Page 5 of 5 
 


